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Historical

8t. John's Coliege, at Annapolis, the alma msater of so many of
Maryland's most noted and honored sons, is eharmingly situated on
the bamks of the Severn River, a few miles from the Chesapeske Bay.
Nothing in the conntry surpasses the picturesque beauty of its situation.

It reaches back in the comtinuity of its records to the earliest eolomial
times, The first effort to establish a college in Maryland was made by
the General Assembly, convened in the City of 8t. Mary’s in the year
1671, An Act was then passsd by the Upper House of Assembly, for
“ founding and erecting & school or college for the edueation of youth
in learning and virtue.’’

This Act was returned by the Lower Hounse with cerfain amend-
ments providing for the diferences in religious views existing at that
time mmong the people, which amendments were not acceptable to tha
Upper House, and there the Bill rested.

In 1694, the then Governor, Sir Francis Nicholson, semt & messnge
to the Legislature proposing ** that 4 way may be found for the build-
ing of a free school for the provines,’' and offering to give momey for
ita mmintenance. The plsn was approved, and the Genersl Asssmbly
offered subseriptions of tobseeo, No further action was taken at this
time, but in 1606 an Aet was passed which resulted in the establish.
ment of King William’s Behwol. This Act recites that the sehool was
established for *¢ the propagation of the gospel mnd edueation of youth
in good letters and manners.”’ Jt was nddressed to '* His moat excel-
lent Majesty, ete., Dread Sovereign Willinm III of England.’’ This
law further epacted that ‘¢ the most Reverend Father in God, Thomas,
by Divine Providence, Lord Archbishop of Capterbury, Primate and
Metropolitan of all England, may be Chanesllor of said sehool, end that
to perpetoate the memory of your Majesty, it may be called King
William 's Behool. "

The Reverend Dr. Bray, whe bad been appointed Commissary of
Maryland by the Bishop of London, and who is said to have been tha
originator of the Boelety for the Propagation of the Gospel, was mainly
ingtrumental in obtaining this said Act.

King William "s School was thus established. Oovernor Nicholson gave
to the sehool a lot in the town of Annapolis, with the house thereon,
and the Legislature appropriated monsy to it, but the sehool-house waa
not finisked until 1701, It was of briek, and stood on the south side
of the State House.

In 1784 the charter of 8t. John's Colloge was pranted, two years
after & like charter had been given for the establishment of Washington
College at Chestertown, on the Eastern Bhore.
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It was imtended by the terms of the charter that the two ecolleges
thus founded should comatitute ome university under the name of the
University of Maryland.

By Act, 1785, the property and funds and students of Eing Wil-
liam's Hehool were conveyed to Bi. Jehn's Collage. ;

Among the chattels passed to the eollege were a number of *'* guaint
and carious volmwnes ** brought over by the Bev. Dr. Bray from Eng-
land, and which still Temain in the library of Bt. John’a.

On November 11, 1789, the college was formally opened, and the
dedication was performed with much solemmity, all the public bodies
being in attendance, aud forming a long proecession from State House
to College Hall, The firsl president of the College was the Rev. J. Me-
Dowell, LL. I,

Among the students of that early period are to be found the names
of George Woshington Parke Custis, and Fairfax and Lawrence Wash-
ington, nephews of George Washington; also, of Franeis Seott Key, whe
entered 8t. John's November 11, 1788, and gradusted in 1796.

On Friday morning, Mareh 25, 1791, Prosident Washingion, attended
by the Governor of Maryland and & number of citizens, visited Bt. John's
College, and expressed much satisfaction at the appearanee of this rising
institution.

In 1807 Rev. Dr. Bethel Judd was chosen principal, and the work,
though grievously hampered by the setipn of the Legislature, waa par-
tially eomtinwed, and im Janmary, 1812, $1,000 of the annuity, which
had been withdrawn by the Legislature in January, 1806, was restored.
A lottery granted in 1821 added $20,000 to the funds, and ensbled the
College to extend its work, Rev, Henry Liyon Davis served as prineipal
from 1820 to 1524, and the Rev, Dr. Willlam Rafferty from 1824 to
15831, In 1831 Bev, Dr, Ieetor Humphreys was appointed prineipal,
snd by his persevering efforts and personal influence with the members
of the Legislatore, a gum of $3,000 was added to the annuity, provided
the Board of Vieitors and Governors should agree to aceept it ‘¢ in full
satisfaction of all legal or equitable claims, that they might bave or be
sapposed to have ageinet the State '’

Dr. Humphreys was succeeded by Rev, (. K. Nelson, He goided the
College suecepsfully till 1861, when the College buildings ware utilized
as & military bospital by the United Btates Army until the elose of
the war.

After the war the College builldings were put in therough repair, and
Dr. Henry Barnard, of Connecticut, lats Commissioner of Edueation,
waa eleeted principal, and the College wag reoponed in September, 1866,
On his resignation, the following summer, Dr. James C. Welling, after-
wards president of Columbian University, Washington, D. C., was chosen
principal, and the College opened in the autumn with 116 stndents
Before the ¢lose of the nmext session, the Board of Visitors and Governors,
in recognition of an increased annuity, passed an ordinance estsblishing
160 State scholarships, each scholarship entitling the holder to exemption
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from the payment of room rent amd tuition fees im any department of
tha College, and the number of students in sttendance increased to 835.
Dr. Welling resigned at the close of the session 1869-T0, and Dr, James
M. Garnett, afterwards professor of English st the University of Vir-
ginig, was appointed in hip stesd. TUndor his administration, in 1871,
the first class since 1860 was graduated, and eontimuously thereafter,
c¢lamsps have been duly gradnated eamch year. In 1880 Tir, James M.
Garnett, with other members of the faculty, tendered their resignations,
which wers accepted by the Board of Visitos, and the Rev. Dr. J. M.
Leavitt was invited to undertake the administrative duties of the
College.

In the summer of 1884 Dr. Leavitt resigned, and went sbroad for his
health, and Prof. William H. Hopkins, subsequently appointed President
of the Woman'a College, Baltimore, Md., was installed as seting prinei-
pal. He maintained contrel during the sessions of 1884-85 and 1885-86,
but in apite of strenvons afforts on his part to ameliorate the condition
of things, no appreciabls progress was made. Under hiz direetion and
personal efforts the detail of an officer from the United States Army,
and also of an Engineer from the United States Navy, were obiained,
in mceordanes with the provisions of certain Aects of Congress, with the
eonditions of which St John's was able to eomply.

He resigmed in the summer of 1888, to aceept the pesition offered to
him by the trustess of the Woman's College, Baltimore, Md., and
Iir. Thomas Fell was ealled to occupy the presidential ehair.

On the 26th of June, 1889, the College celebrated the Ome Hundredih
Anniversary of its existenee under the fitle of 8t. Johu’s Coliege. Many
of the old studenta returned for the occssiom, and friends who had neot
met for years exchanped the heartiest greetings. Owing to the large
asspmhblage of vigitors a tent was erected om the eampus, in the shade
of the famous old poplar tree, where the literary features of the program
were carried out.

Toward the elose of 1891 the Board of Visitors authorized President
Fell to initinte & movement for the formation of an emdowment fund.
In pursuance of this object he has met with maeh suecess, and ae one
of the remults of his efforts in this direction, has paid off a mortgage
debt of 830,000, incurred by reinstating mud equipping the College after
the Civil War.

In 1901, a new geientific building was erected and dedicated to the
memory of Henry Williams Woodward, the father of James T. Wood-
ward, President of the Hanover Bank, New York. And in 1904 a dining-
hall and & new dormitory for siudemts wes added te the group of
buildings.

In 1805, Mr. Andrew Carnegie made a donation for the ereetion of
a new building on the eampus, which has not yet been built.

In January, 1807, an affiliation was formed with the University of
Maryland, making 8t. Jobhn’s College the Department of Arts and
Beicness of the University, The eombined echopls are directed by a
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Couneil of sight (two from Bt. Johm s Collage, two from the Law School,
two from the Madieal School, and one each from the Sehools of Dentisty
and Pharmaey), of which the Governor of Maryland is, ex-officio, the
Chairman, with tha title of Chaneellor, the Honorable Bernard Carter
the Pro-Chancellor and Dr. Thomas Fell, President of 8t. John's College,
the Vice-Chancellor.

By this affilistion, & year of the time required to take the scademie
eourss and the professional course in any of the schools may be saved.

In 1808 a large new Gymnasiom was erecied, covering a ground space
of 158 feet by 07 feet. The main gymnasium room is surrounded by &
gallery econtaining a ramning track, and there are bowiing alleys, a rifle
range, rending room, trophy room, ms well as the various other separate
apartments for offices, ete, required in such a building. Adjoining, is
a Bwimming pool, with a large shower bath and lavatory sttached; also
a large spare room.

In 1909 a severe misfortune befell the College in the burming of
MeDowell Hall, the most valuable of all the buildings, both in traditional
amsoclation and in intrinsie worth. This building was begun in 1744 ne
a residence for & Colonial Governor, and was presented by the State for
educational purposes in 1784,




Oue Hundred and Twenty-fHifth
Anniversary

At 8 meeting of the Board of Visitors and Governors held on the
sixth of January, 1008, it was resolved that the Celebration of the Ome
Hundredth and Twenty-Fifth Anniversary of the Collega shonld be duly
observed during Commencement Week, and, in order to facilitate the
preparation ¢f the necessary mrrangements, & Committee consisting of
Mesers, James A. Pechtig, L. Dorsey Gassaway and Louis T. Clark was
appointed.

Under the suspices of the mbove Committes, other committees of
alumni were added, to eo-operste in making the Celebration a success.
Meetings were held from time to time in Baltimore, at which plans
were discussed and & general programme finally decided upon.

GENERAL COMMITTEES
THE BOARD OF VISITORS
JaMEs A, FEcETIG, JR, '05 (Chairman)

L. Dorsgy Gassaway, 81 Loure T. Crazk, 92
RECEFTION
B, Veaxox Og0IL, ‘80 Joaw L, Onew, 87 Jases M. MuneoE, 74
How. Roeeet Moss Rmgrry P. Meuven, '00
ALUMNI
Hyxey D, Hamraw, 78 W. Troxas Keur, 97 (Bec’y)
Jorr T. Higrison, 07
SPEAKERS
PaLesor H, Tuck, '72 Warres 1. Dawsixs, '80
L. B. ExzvE Cracawrr, "95
IMVITATIONS
Davigr B, BaNDALL, "83 Fraxg H. Broceerr
A, W. Woopcock, '03
OUTDOOR
E. B, IeLerasr, 04 Nicmouas H. Omesx, ™80

Riogagp H. DovaLL EveLeN Haprmon, 08



